
1 
 

 
 
 
 

 

       

   
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS      Action 
 

3. MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA      Action 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS 

a) 2016 Indian Trail July 4th Parade Float Winners Plaque Presentation 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
6. LAW ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 

 
7. DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 

a) Department Update:  Parks & Recreation—Jason Tryon, Director of Parks & Recreation 
b) Department Update:  Finance—Jim Wojtowicz, Finance Director 

 
8. CONSENT AGENDA        Action 

a) Approval of Budget Amendments #603-#610 
b) Approval of Draft Minutes June 28, 2016 Regular Town Council Meeting 
c) Approval of Month End Tax Report June 2016 
d) Approval of Tax Settlement 2015 Taxes 
e) Approval of Order of Collection 
f) Approval of opening the Public Comment Period for Faith Church Road Corridor Study 
g) Approval of  Resolution #R160712-01-Resolution Directing the Town Clerk to Investigate a Petition 

Received Under G.S. 160A-31 (Voluntary Contiguous Annexation; Annexation #142) 
h) Approval of Certificate of Sufficiency-Annexation Petition #142 for Parcel# 07045001 
i) Approval of Resolution #R160712-02-Resolution Fixing the Date of the Public Hearing for 

Annexation for August 9, 2016 
j) Approval of Resolution #R160712-03-Resolution Authorizing Sale of Surplus Personal Property 

Worth Less than $30,000 

    TOWN COUNCIL 
 

     Gordon B. Daniels 
 

       Gary M. Savoie 
 

       Amy R. Stanton 
 

     Mark A. Wireman 

MAYOR 
Michael L Alvarez 

 

MAYOR PRO TEM 

David L. Cohn 

 

TOWN MANAGER 

Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E. 

Indian Trail Town Council  

Regular Meeting  

Tuesday, July 12, 2016 
Civic Building—6:30 PM 



2 
 

k) Approval of Amendment #2 of the May 1, 2013 Interlocal Agreement Between the Town of Indian 
Trail, NC, Union County, NC and Eddie Cathey, Sheriff of Union County  

l) Cancel second meeting in August; August 23rd which was “tentative” on the Annual Meeting 
Schedule 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS        None  
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS ITEMS        None 

              
11. NEW BUSINESS ITEMS        Action 

a) Council consideration to approve equipment purchase of a new backhoe.  (Mr. Kaufhold) 
b) Council consideration to approve Website Design and Developer. (Mr. Kaufhold) 
c) Council consideration to approve having a moment of silence at the beginning of Town Council 

Meetings.  (Mayor Pro Tem Cohn)  
d) Council to consider selecting and honoring an “Indian Trail Person of the Month”; give a gift 

certificate for appreciation of positive things people do for the Town.  (Mayor Pro Tem Cohn) 
e) Council to consider modifying the Donation Policy. (Councilman Wireman) 
f) Council to consider the development of a Draft Agenda Committee to consist of the Town Manager, 

Mayor and Clerk.  (Councilman Wireman) 
g) Council consideration to direct Town staff to send a letter to the North Carolina Department of 

Transportation (NCDOT) requesting to have all the planned Super Street configurations in the Town 
of Indian Trail to allow traffic to go directly through these intersections, instead of outlawing all left 
turns, and be directly consistent to the City of Monroe’s and the Monroe-Union Economic 
Development Corporation request in June.  (Councilman Daniels) 

h) Council consideration to start each Indian Trail Town Council meeting with a Christian prayer and 
allow the Mayor to establish all of the policies, practices, and selection of those who give the prayer 
at each Town Council meeting.  (Councilman Daniels) 

i) Council consideration to start each Indian Trail Council meeting with a secular prayer and allow the 
Mayor to establish all of the policies, practices, and selection of those who give the prayer at each 
Town Council Meeting.  (Councilman Daniels) 

j) Council consideration of Woolpert’s scope of work for Crooked Creek Park. (Mr. Tryon) 
 

12. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a) Traffic Calming Devices and Street Ownership for Crismark.  (Mayor Alvarez) 
b) Council discussion on creating a zoning amendment for a needed combination of a hotel, a minimum 

of 10,000 square foot Class A conference center, and a white table cloth restaurant at Sun Valley 
Commons Entertainment District, instead of the currently requested stand alone hotel.  (Councilman 
Daniels) 

c) Council discussion on creating a new Senior Center for Indian Trail residents, while considering 
using one of the three Town-owned buildings on Indian Trail Road for this future purpose.  
(Councilman Daniels) 

d) Limit each presentation to 10 minutes.  (Mayor Alvarez) 
  
13.  UPDATES 

a) Manager’s Update:  Scott Kaufhold, Town Manager 
 

14. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
15. CLOSED SESSION          Action 
16. ADJOURN          Action 



 
PO Box 2430 . 100 Navajo Trail . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-2541 . Fax (704) 821-3689 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM: Susan Didier 
 
DATE: July 06, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: July 4th Parade Winners 
 
 

 

Our 2016 Parade Float Contest, sponsored by Heritage Funeral Home, drew tremendous interest 
and success. Parade judges have submitted their votes, contest results listed below.  
Director Harris High will be presenting award plaques and prizes at the July 14, 2016 Council 
Meeting. Invitations have been extended to all winners, families and friends.  
 
Most Patriotic- M & R Stables 
 
Most Creative- Sardis Baptist Church 
 
Best Youth-   Mr. James Crump, VFW Post 2423 
 
Most Spirit by a business- Tied for first- ASAP Communications and Extreme Ice Center  
 
Most Red, White and Blue- Total Being Yoga 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Susan Didier 
Community Development Specialist 
 
 
 
 
 

















































































 

1 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

 
 
 
 

 

       

   
 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Indian Trail Town Council held a Regular Monthly Meeting on Tuesday, June 28, 2016, 6:30 PM in the Council’s 
Chambers at the Civic Building, 100 Navajo Trail, Indian Trail, NC. 
 
The following members of Town Council were present: 
Mayor Michael Alvarez     
Mayor Pro Tempore David Cohn   Council Member Gordon Daniels 
Council Member Amy R. Stanton   Council Member Mark Wireman 
 
The following members of Town Council were absent: 
Council Member Gary Savoie 
 
The following members of staff were present: 
Town Manager Scott Kaufhold, Attorney George Sistrunk, Town Clerk Kelley Southward, Director of Planning 
and Neighborhood Services Rox Burhans, Director of Finance Jim Wojtowicz, Communications Coordinator 
Mike Parks, Engineer Project Manager Adam McLamb and Contract Analyst Vicky Watts. 
 
Guests Present:  there were approximately 20 guests in the audience. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Alvarez called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

2. AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS  
 Councilwoman Stanton requested to add “Honorary Mayor for the Day, Sam Cox, Independence Day 2016” 

Proclamation to Presentations (item 4a); the motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 Councilman Cohn moved to remove New Business Items 11c, 11d, & 11e from the agenda; the motion 

carried by a vote of three (3) to one (1) with Councilman Daniels voting in the opposition.  
 Councilman Daniels requested to remove from the Consent Agenda item 8a Budget Amendments #580-#583 

and move it to New Business Item 11c; it was noted that a vote was not needed to relocated this item but all 
concurred with moving it to New Business. 

 Councilman Wireman moved to add to the Consent Agenda item 8c to approve Budget Amendments #584-
#602; the motion carried unanimously. 

 Councilman Daniels asked for clarification from the Attorney, stating that NC General Statutes gives 
municipalities the right to enact moratoriums and the agenda item to discuss a moratorium has been 

    TOWN COUNCIL 
 

     Gordon B. Daniels 
 

       Gary M. Savoie 
 

       Amy R. Stanton 
 

     Mark A. Wireman 

MAYOR 

Michael L Alvarez 

 

MAYOR PRO TEM 

David L. Cohn 

 

TOWN MANAGER 

Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E. 

Indian Trail Town Council  

Regular Meeting  

Tuesday, June 28, 2016 
Civic Building—6:30 PM 



 

2 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

removed—is this allowed.  Mr. Sistrunk noted that the NC General Statutes give municipalities to do all 
business conducted by a Town and included on the agenda and likewise gives Council the authority to set the 
agenda.  Therefore if the majority Council elects not to include a matter on the agenda that is totally up to 
Council (the majority thereof).  Mr. Daniels then asked how citizens were to enjoy the rights of what has been 
granted by the state for a municipality to act on if matters can be removed from the agenda.  Mr. Sistrunk 
noted that such was a question of policy and it is up to Council to establish their policies.  

 
3. MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA 

Councilman Wireman moved to approve the agenda, as amended and the motion carried unanimously.  

     

4. PRESENTATIONS 
a) Proclamation Mayor for the Day 4th of July 2016 

Mayor Alvarez noted that Sam Cox is a boy from Indian Trail who recently won the American Music Guild’s 
“Union Idol” and he would like Council to approve a proclamation naming Sam Cox “Mayor for the Day” for the 
4th of July.  Unfortunately Sam could not attend the meeting this evening.  Mayor Alvarez read the Proclamation.  
Councilman Daniels moved to approve the Mayor for the Day Proclaiming Sam Cox as such on July 4, 2016 and 

the motion carried by way of a unanimous vote. 

  
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 Samantha Towns of 104 Pine Lake Drive addressed Council thanking the Parks & Recreation Department 
for a job well done on this year’s Jazz Festivals.  She is thoroughly enjoying the Jazz Festivals at Crossing 
Path’s Park on Friday evenings and hopes everyone will come to the next one on July 22nd. 

 Kim Light of 4021 Brookforest Lane in the Ashecroft subdivision addressed Council about the Ashecroft 
Drainage Study to be discussed tonight during Old Business.  She has read the survey and felt the consultant 
had recommended the 4th option.  While this option appears to be a viable solution to address future runoff 
she was curious about what would be done to clean up the mess and damage from the runoff that occurred 
from the construction site across the street that was pumping water off their site from roughly December 2015 
to March 2016.  There is standing water in the ditch behind her home that is 4”-6” deep and has weeds and 
other things growing in it.  The area is also harboring insects and animals.  The water never completely dries 
up because there is nowhere for the water to go.  All of the mess is a direct result from the construction site 
across the street and she does not believe it should be her responsibility to clean the mess up.  Ms. Light said 
that trench has become so deep from the water erosion that there are exposed pipes and wires.  Ms. Light said 
she is pleased that there are proposals to fix the problem from occurring in the future but wanted to know the 
plan to fix the damage that has already occurred from no fault of her own.   

 Marguerite Holm of 4023 Brookforest Lane in the Ashecroft subdivision also addressed Council about the 
Ashecroft Drainage Study.  She was thankful to Council for having the study done and available on-line for 
review prior to the meeting.  The options are expensive but as Ms. Light pointed out there is nothing 
addressing a fix for the damage that has occurred.  She also asked Council to consider addressing the damage 
that has occurred in addition to fixing the drainage so that no further damage occurs. 

 Mike Mower of 2022 Canopy Drive noted that this was he and his wife’s first time attending a Council 
meeting.  They came to hear about the residential development moratorium that has been removed from the 
agenda.  He is concerned about on-going development and is curious about the unified overall plan for 
development in Indian Trail.  He opined that a moratorium on development would give the town and 
concerned citizens’ time to look at the town as a whole and determine how best to move forward with a plan 
that unifies development in Indian Trail.  The Mower’s have lived here for eight years and enjoy living here 
and hope to retire here. 

 Michael Faulkenberry of 579 Picketts Circle addressed Council; a verbatim written copy of his statements 
are attached hereto and made a part of these official minutes. 

 
6. LAW ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 

Captain Coble noted that school is out and you can tell by the eggs being cooked on the sidewalks.  There have been 
some minor vandalism cases such as egging and spray painting that has been occurring; teens are suspected in most of 
these cases.  They have received some good leads in an on-going armed robbery that occurred recently.  Councilman 



 

3 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

Daniels asked if there was an increase in adolescence travels on the streets from prior years.  Captain Coble said he 
has not notice such being worse than any other year.   

 
7. DEPARTMENT UPDATES: 

a) Department Update:  Planning & Neighborhood Services—Rox Burhans 
Mr. Burhans gave an update on the Virginia Trace project—a 92 lot single family home subdivision located at 
the intersection of Sardis Church Road and Oakwood Lane.  The subject property is not currently located 
within Indian Trail and requires an annexation.  At their June Meeting the Planning Board recommended 
approval of the subdivision by a vote of 5 to 2.  The two dissenting voters had concerns about traffic in the 
vicinity.  Councilman Cohn asked why the Planning Board was looking to approve a project not located in 
Town.  Mr. Burhans noted that the Planning Board is just advisory; they don’t approve/disapprove any 
projects but rather make recommendations to Council.  Mr. Burhans further explained that once this reaches 
Council the first order of business will be for Council to approve the annexation.  Then, Council will have to 
assign a zoning classification to the property.  In this case the applicant is requesting voluntary annexation 
and a zoning classification of SF5with conditional zoning for a proposed subdivision.  If Council isn’t 
interested in the conditional zoning then the applicant may not be interested in incorporating the property into 
the municipal limits.  Currently the property is located in unincorporated Union County.  Essentially what the 
Planning Board has recommended is that if the Council elects to approve the annexation request they have 
recommended this zoning for the property as well as recommended the proposed subdivision.  Councilman 
Wireman was curious as to why the Planning Board would take up their time reviewing a project that hasn’t 
yet incorporated.  Mr. Burhans noted that received applications go through the process; the Planning Board 
doesn’t get the opportunity to say they will not address a received application.  Mr. Burhans believed the 
matter will start its process with Town Council as early as next month. 
 
Mr. Burhans also gave update on the Heritage Rezoning Project this is a proposed conditional rezoning that is 
partially located in Indian Trail and partially located in Wesley Chapel.  The larger portion of the property is 
in Indian Trail.  The project proposes 430 lots; roughly 2/3 of the project is a senior, age-restricted community 
with the remaining 1/3 of the project traditional housing for families of all ages.  Community meetings were 
held on June 22nd with about 40 attendees.  Topics of concerns were environmental factors and a road tie-in to 
the Taylor Glenn neighborhood.  Additionally, there were queries about making the entire project for seniors.  
The next step in this project is to go to the Planning Board.  Councilman Wireman asked where they were in 
the Wesley Chapel process.  Mr. Burhans understands the matter was to be heard at their Planning Board last 
night but there was a power outage that precluded the meeting from occurring.  Councilman Cohn 
understands that Wesley Chapel would prefer Indian Trail to make a decision first since the bulk of the 
project is in Indian Trail.  Mr. Burhans noted that if Wesley Chapel is slated to make a decision prior to 
Indian Trail they intend for their approval to be contingent upon ours. 
 
A conditional rezoning application for light industrial on Radiator Drive has been submitted; Council recently 
approved a text amendment allowing light industrial in this area. 
 
A new Planning Technician, Ryan Lipp, has started employment with the department—the team is excited to 
have him.  Unfortunately, Kevin Icard, Senior Planner has left Indian Trail to take a Planning Director 
position at a beach community in South Carolina.  While he will be missed by staff here, everyone is happy 
for Kevin and his new opportunity.  The second Code Enforcement vehicle will be purchased after July 1st; 
we will likely go with the state contract for the purchase. 

 
8. CONSENT AGENDA         

a) Approval Budget Amendments #580-#583 this item was moved to New Business during the 
approval/adjustment of the agenda. 
 

a) Approval of Draft Minutes June 13, 2016 Regular Town Council Meeting 
b) Approval of the 2016-2017 Powell Bill Map 
c) Approval of Budget Amendments #584-#602 

 



 

4 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

Councilman Daniels moved to approve the Consent Agenda; the motion carried unanimously. 

 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS        None  
                 – Please adhere to the following guidelines: 

 Proceed to the podium, and state your name and address clearly; 

 Be concise; avoid repetition; limit comments to three (3) minutes or less; 

 Designate a spokesperson for large groups 

 
10.  OLD BUSINESS ITEMS         

a) Second reading of ZT2016-005 Crooked Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant Exemption:  a proposed 
UDO text amendment to Chapters 110.080 and 520.020G to exempt existing and future onsite 
improvements at the Union County Crooked Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant from UDO 
requirements at Parcel #07066015B; applicant is the Town of Indian Trail.  A public hearing for this 
proposed UDO text amendment was held by Council on June 13, 2016; the consistency findings were 
approved.  A simple majority vote was obtained on June 13, 2016 for the proposed amendment but a 
4/5 vote was required at that first reading. (Mr. Burhans) 
 
Councilman Daniels said that at the June 13th meeting it was stated that this water treatment plant was being 
extended to add capacity for new developments.  Councilman Daniels said that such is not accurate.  The 
proposed expansion is because the current equipment is worn out.  The upgrades would only address the 
properties currently being served.   
 
Councilman Daniels requested to table the matter until Councilman Savoie could be present for a true super 

majority.  Councilman Cohn noted that this is a second vote and a super majority is not needed at a second 
vote, rather just a simple majority is needed.  So, assuming the vote goes the way it did last time, with Mr. 
Savoie present, it wouldn’t make any difference—the amendment would pass this time with the vote of last 
meeting.  Councilwoman Stanton said that she has not heard or seen anything from Councilman Savoie 
requesting this to be held and it was noted at the June 13th meeting that this item would be included on this 
agenda.  Mayor Alvarez called for a vote on the motion to table this matter and motion died by a vote of one 

(1) to four (4) with Councilman Daniels being the only member to vote in favor of tabling. 

Councilman Wireman moved to approve the consistency findings as read into the record by staff on June 13, 

2016; the motion carried by a vote of three (3) to one (1) with Councilman Daniels opposing. 

 

Councilman Wireman moved to approve ZT2016-005 (Ordinance #0160613-242) as presented by staff on 

June 13, 2016; the motion carried by a vote of three (3) to one (1) with Councilman Daniels opposing. 
 

b) Council consideration of the Ashe Croft Drainage Study.  (Mr. Kaufhold) 
 
Mr. Kaufhold introduced this item and noted that Adam McLamb, Engineering Project Manager would be 
presenting the bulk of this item.  USI is the consultant that has provided this study.  Mr. Kaufhold clarified 
from a comment made during public comments that the consultant has not endorsed any of the options they 
have included in the study.  Rather, staff has recommended Alternative#1 of the 4 Alternatives for repair 
provided by USI.  Mr. Kaufhold noted that the developer of the subdivision under construction across the 
street from Ashe Croft was asked to bring their temporary stormwater controls up to the permanent standards 
when USI was first contracted to perform this study.  That contractor complied.  So, while the conditions of 
the pumping the temporary stormwater ponds at the construction area has ceased, which caused a lot of the 
damage at Ashe Croft, there still needs to be an effort to clean up and repair the damage so that situation does 
not worsen with future rain events.   
 
Mr. McLamb presented pictures showing the current conditions.  Part of the problem is that residents in Ashe 
Croft have encroached a recorded 15-foot drainage easement over time.  The encroachment of the drainage 
easement is preventing water from flowing as it was designed to do.  The Ashe Croft subdivision is about 25 
years old.  Some pictures showed structures within a few feet of the drainage easement.  The Study provided 
four solutions for the Town’s consideration with cost estimates for each: 



 

5 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

  
Alternative 1-Upgrade the existing channel $177,000 

 
 Alternative 2-Pipe the existing channel $281,000 
 

Alternative 3-Upgrade the upstream detention $5,900 (Mr. Kaufhold noted above that this was already 
done while the study was being conducted) 
 
Alternative 4-Reroute the existing drainage along Brookforest Lane in a new pipe system $261,000 

 
Staff is recommending Council choose Alternative 1.  During discussions it was noted that the 15-foot drainage 
easement has been there since the development was recorded.  Property owners who bought in the area was 
presented this information minimum in their deed, at a minimum.  If Alternative 1 is selected the 15-foot 
easement will have to be restored.  The Town will have to work with property owner about relocating and/or 
removing any structures that have been built in the easement.  A member of the Home Owner’s Association 
(HOA) Board for Ashe Croft was present noting that since the ditch is a recorded drainage easement they have no 
authority to make property owners maintain the ditch as it runs along their individual properties.  Mr. McLamb 
noted that the drainage easement is not platted “public” in the sense that the Town must maintain the ditch but 
rather that public water may run through the ditch.   
 
Mr. McLamb noted that if Alt 1 is selected there is about 600 feet of ditch that would be graded to get the 
required slope.  Some fill will have to be added along the sides.  Approximately 11 feet of the 15-foot easement 
would be taken up by the actual ditch from top side to top side.     
 
Councilman Daniels opined that piping the channel (Alt 2) might be a better solution and offer a more long-term 
solution.  Staff noted that the Town’s general practice has been that they do not pipe existing channels/ditches.  
This is a standard industry practice as piping restricts some of the saturation that a ditch provides for.  
Additionally, if the Town installs a pipe then it is the Town’s responsibility to maintain the pipe.  
Access/maintenance easements would likely have to be purchased from property owners; there are approximately 
18 affected properties.  Residents from Ashe Croft felt it would not be possible to obtain property from all 18 
residents.  Mr. Kaufhold noted that condemnation processes would have to be implemented further complicating 
this Alternative and possibly driving the cost very high due to legal fees. 
 
Ms. Light, from the audience, noted upon query from Councilman Daniels that about 1/3 of her back yard is 
saturated.  Further the ditch is now about three feet deep and it wasn’t that way a year ago.  She felt that piping 
the ditch was unrealistic.  If the channel would just flow properly again that would be sufficient.  The drainage 
easement worked for 25 years until the contractor for the new development across the street was pumping their 
temporary stormwater ponds into the ditch.  If the ditch could be repaired from that damage it lends to reason that 
it should work again as it did in the past.   
 
Town Council provided unanimous direction to staff to move forward with Alternative 1—to upgrade the existing 
channel for the approximate cost of $177,000. 

 
Mr. Kaufhold reiterated what was explained to Council when they approved this study; there are three costs to 
bring this matter to completion.   Based upon this direction, the consultant will produce a fee proposal for 
construction and design plans next; the second cost in this process (the study being the first cost).  The third cost 
will be the actual construction cost.  Staff estimated it to be about 30 days before the fee proposal for design plans 
would be back before Council.  Hopefully, construction can begin in the fall.   

              
11. NEW BUSINESS ITEMS         

a) Faith Church Road Corridor Study—Information only at this time.  (Mr. Kaufhold) 
 
Mr. McLamb noted that this study has been on-going for a long time.  Specifically, it is to extend Faith 
Church Road across HWY 74 around the Harris Teeter Distribution Center through (what will be) the Sage 



 

6 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

Croft subdivision, through mostly platted areas of Brandon Oaks and into Wesley Chapel.  The entire 
extension is roughly 4.6 miles.  In 2000 the Town conducted a thoroughfare alignment study which resulted 
in having the project added to the 1999 Mecklenburg Union Metropolitan Planning Organization (MUMPO) 
Thoroughfare Plan.  At that time the project was proposed to be a 2-lane road with an 80-foot right-of-way 
(ROW).  As recently as 2014 the Town’s Comprehensive Plan suggests a 4-lane road with a median totaling a 
112-foot ROW and a posted speed limit of 35 mph.   Now, we are planning through 2040 with the 
Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP).   
 
The environmental constraints involve existing conditions, known/planned development and future 
development.  The proposed roadway crosses multiple streams and flood plains.  Additionally, the proposed 
roadway crosses several exiting homes.   
 
In an effort to see if this is still a viable project Mr. McLamb has split the project into Segments A, B and C.  
ROW has been reserved in much of Segment A:  at the Harris Teeter Distribution Center and in the Sage 
Croft development.  Segment B includes a portion of Sage Croft; again ROW has been dedicated in this 
neighborhood for the project.  Some ROW in Brandon Oaks was dedicated but there is an area in Brandon 
Oaks where the ROW was not dedicated for this extension project.  There is ROW dedicated in Segment C.   
 
The following Potential Impacts were presented: 
 
Floodplain, Stream, Wetland Impacts  

  
Floodplain Impacts  Stream Impacts  

Wetland 

Impacts  

Segment  
Length 

(mi)  
Acres  

# 

Crossings  

Linear 

Ft.  

# 

Crossings  
Acres  

A  1.3  0.6  1  933  2  0.9  

B  1.9  12.3  2  2,982  10  1.1  

C  1.4  11.1  1  1,608  6  3.5  

TOTAL  4.6  24.0  4  5,523  18  5.5  

  
 
 
Property Impacts  

Segment  
Total Acres 

Impacted  
Total Takes  Partial Takes  

# Structures 

Impacted  

A  35.6  1  7  0  

B  34.5  6  30  1  

C  31.1  0  13  0  

TOTAL  101.2  7  50  1  

 
 
 



 

7 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

The following estimated construction costs were presented: 
 
 
 

 
 

Construction Costs – Segment A  

Segment  Limits  Length (mi)  

Conceptual 

Construction 

Cost  

Responsible 

Party  

A-1  
US 74 to CSX grade 

Separation  
0.37  $3.4 million  Town  

A-2  CSX Grade Separation  0.42  $6.1 million  Town  

A-3  
CSX Grade Separation 

to Old Monroe Road  
0.46  $4.3 million  

Developer 

(Sagecroft)  

 
 
 

Staff recommends keeping Segment A as proposed—extension between US 74 and Old Monroe Road.  Abandon 
Segments B and C:  Segment B has high costs and impacts, runs through Brandon Oaks; Segment C has highest 
wetland impacts and the highest per mile cost; it does not have logical terminus without Segment B and is not 
compatible with the Heritage site plan.  Additional recommendations include widening Wesley Chapel Road to 4 
lanes and propose a new connection between Beulah Church Road and Tan Yard Road to improve connectivity 
between Weddington, Wesley Chapel, Indian Trail and Monroe.  Wesley Chapel has helped to create the 
realignment.  Wesley Chapel needs to present the proposed changes to their Council and then this will be 
presented to TCC and the MPO.  After all presentations have been made there will be a 30-day public comment 
period and there will be a public meeting during that time.  After that, a final study will have to be completed; 
then presentations again to the two Town Councils, TCC and MPO and then the original plan can be removed 
from the Thoroughfare Plan.  This is a very long process. 
 

 
b) Council consideration to appoint a member of Council or staff to represent Indian Trail on the 

committee that will be created to formulate the scope of work for the fire fee study that the Town of 
Indian Trail has committed to contributing $5,000 to be a part of along with Stallings and possibly 
other adjacent municipalities. (Mr. Kaufhold) 
 
After some brief discussion Councilwoman Stanton moved to appoint Alicia Massey, Tax Collector, and 

Mayor Alvarez to any committee that may be formed regarding this fire fee study.  The motion carried by a 

vote of three (3) to one (1) with Councilman Daniels voting in the opposition.   

Construction Costs  

Segment  Length (mi)  # Culverts  
Conceptual Construction 

Cost  

A  1.3  0  $14.2 million  

B  1.9  3  $19.7 million  

C  1.4  4  $15.8 million  

TOTAL  4.6  7  $49.7 million  

 

 

 
   



 

8 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

 
c) Council consideration to establish the policy and practice to have a secular prayer to open each Indian 

Trail Council Meeting.  (Councilman Daniels)  
 
This item was removed during additions and deletions of the agenda. 
 

d) Council consideration to give a donation of $3,000 to the Porter Ridge Athletic Association and to the 
Indian Trail Athletic Association to allow Indian Trail residents who have financial limitation to have 
their children participate in these athletic programs. (Councilman Daniels) 
 
This item was removed during additions and deletions of the agenda. 
 

e) Council to consider directing the Town Attorney to draft an ordinance to enact a 10-month 
moratorium on the approval of any multi-family (apartments) dwelling units and any single-family 
residential units. (Councilman Daniels) 
 
This item was removed during additions and deletions of the agenda. 
 

c) Council consideration to approve Budget Amendments #580-583 (this item was moved from the Consent 
Agenda to this location during additions and deletions of the agenda) 
 
There was no discussion; Councilman Wireman moved to approve Budget Amendments #580-#583; the 

motion carried by a vote of three (3) to one (1) with Councilman Daniels opposing.   

 
12. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a) Business/Technology Park discussion with Mr. Chris Platé, Director of Monroe Union County Economic 
Development (MUCED). 
 
Mr. Plate, Director of MUCED, addressed Council about how to begin planning for a Business/Technology Park 
in Indian Trial.  He asked Council to think about their goal:  does Council want to create Information Technology 
(IT) jobs or manufacturing jobs or some combination of the two?   Where is Indian Trail going to be successful 
and what is our competiveness?   Next, the Town should identify possible constraints.  Funding is almost always a 
constraint.  Which can lead to other questions or things to consider such a taking on a partner in this venture—and 
if you take a partner do you want a public or private partner?   What land is available for the park and is there 
sufficient infrastructure for that site (or available to the site)? 
 
Other basic questions that need to be discussed and answered include: 
What is the future vision for the Town of Indian Trail? 
What industry sectors could provide long-term job opportunities for Indian Trail? 
Within those sectors, what businesses and/or industries does Indian Trail want to target? 
What size buildings and amenities do those type of businesses need? 
Is there a current zoning that will support these businesses? 
Does the current zoning allow for other non-compatible uses? 
 
Mr. Plate recommended that the next step in moving forward would be to establish a small, 5-person task force 
made up of 2 Town Council members, Town Manager, Town Planning Director and himself.  Have some 
recommendations for Town Council by the second meeting in September.  The recommendations should include 
target industries, recommended building restrictions/covenants, site location(s), list of potential partners (if any) 
and overview of potential costs to the Town. 
 
Councilman Daniels asked Mr. Plate if he felt a public or private partnership would be better.  Mr. Plate didn’t 
know if one was always better than another for a municipality.  It depends upon on who is available and willing to 
work with the municipality. 
 



 

9 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

Councilman Wireman recognized Mr. Plate for his recent award in his area of expertise.  He also thanked Mr. 
Plate for coming this evening and all the assistance he has provided to the Town.   
 
Councilman Daniels also recognized Mr. Plate for his recent award and asked who are biggest competitors are in 
the area.  Mr. Plate said that Indian Trail would be competing with any other municipality that is located in this 
same ring around Charlotte:  Concord, Rock Hill, Fort Mill, Gastonia and Mooresville to name a few.  
Councilman Daniels asked if Indian Trail was competing against any closer towns such as Matthews, Mint Hill, 
Monroe or Weddington.  Mr. Plate noted that companies don’t care about lines a lot of times it comes down to tax 
rates.  If a company wants to locate in the region of the towns just named by Councilman Daniels then they will 
likely use the tax rate and site availability as determining factors.  If all those municipalities had a site to 
accommodate a company and zoning processes were fairly comparable then they would likely go with the 
municipality that has the lowest tax rate.  Indian Trail’s close proximity to the interstate and low tax rate makes 
the town very competitive.   

 
13.  UPDATES 

a) Manager’s Update:  Scott Kaufhold, Town Manager:  reminded everyone of the 4th of July Parade—things 
kick off around 9:30 AM, Parade line-up at 10:30 AM and begins moving about 11:30 AM.  Council should 
speak with Susan Didier if they are interested in riding in the Parade this year. 
 

14. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

 Councilman Wireman noted that the Jazz Festivals are wonderful events.  He thanked Mr. Plate for his 
presentation.  He thanked Council for handling the flooding issues in the Town such as the problem in Ashe 
Croft.  He wishes the process was faster moving but is happy that there is forward progress.  There were three 
agenda items removed.  The comment was made that the state statutes allow us to invoke a moratorium but 
that could be said about all action taken by Council.  One thing that statutes allow is for Council to set the 
final agenda which means making changes to the proposed agenda; until Council approves the agenda in open 
session of the meeting the agenda is simply a “proposed agenda”—Council has the right to make changes to 
the proposed agenda before approving the agenda.  He finds it odd that over the past two years on Council one 
member had in that time only ever requested three items on agenda.  Now, over the past several months that 
one Council member is requesting 3 and 4 items per agenda.  It makes one look at the requested items and 
think about what is really best for the Town.  Councilman Wireman felt that the three items requested by this 
Council Member for this agenda were a distraction.  In particular with the moratorium there is an entire 
significant process that would have to be followed when considering a moratorium.    At the end of the day 
Council has final decision regarding any development that takes place in town.  The previous Council 
approved 1,800 or so apartments and now members of that approval want to implement a moratorium.  
Councilman Wireman hopes all will enjoy the 4th of July; he will be out of Town but is sure the parade will be 
a wonderful event.   

 Councilman Cohn was happy to see some new faces in the audience this evening.  He took the three agenda 
items off for good reason.  First, the secular prayer item.  Councilman Cohn said that he is proud to be a 
Christian.  His understanding of secular prayers at Council meetings means that each week someone of a 
different religion would come in and say a prayer of their religion.  If we really want to have prayer why don’t 
we just have a moment of silence and everyone can pray to their own God.  He believes that some people may 
find it offensive to have to pray to a different God.  If you want to pray, pray before you come to the meeting 
let’s not upset anyone over this.  Councilman Cohn reiterated Councilman Wireman’s point that the member 
including these three items had only put three items total on agenda in two years.  Now that this Councilman 
is running for a State office we are getting three and four items per agenda—it’s political grandstanding.  
Second regarding the donations to the two athletic associations.  The associations didn’t ask for a donation 
from the Town.  Councilman Daniels started a couple meetings ago with this by asking to give the 
associations $15,000 without even talking to the associations.  Now he’s backed it up to $3,000.  Councilman 
Cohn said that he contacted the director of one of the associations and asked if anyone had contacted him 
about the $3,000 donation; no one had contacted the director about the matter.  Councilman Cohn felt it was 
odd that you would include an agenda item for donation to an organization without evening contacting the 
organization.  There are a lot of non-profit organizations in this town that we could give money too but it is 



 

10 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

the taxpayer’s money.  He said it is not his job to give away taxpayer’s money just because he is running for 
office.  Finally, regarding the moratorium on residential development.  Councilman Cohn said he is irritated 
by this because he was the only one that voted against the apartments because the residents did not want the 
apartments.  Councilman Cohn said he believes Councilman Daniels took developer money and voted in 
favor of the apartments.  And now Councilman Daniels wants to put a moratorium on multifamily and single 
family residential development?  The current Council is fairly conservative and the previous Council, in his 
opinion, rubber-stamped all development.  He feels Councilman Daniels’ actions are very hypocritical.  
Councilman Cohn said it was like the second Sheriff’s Station—last year Councilman Daniels didn’t support 
the Sheriff’s Department now he’s wanted a second station for them but didn’t even check with them to see if 
they want or need a second station.  This is the kind of thing that Council is sitting through every week.  
Councilman Cohn is confident that this Council cares about the residents and is going to do the right thing.  
Councilman Cohn said that he is tired of the political grandstanding.  Councilman Cohn wished everyone a 
safe 4th of July; he and his family will be in the parade. 

 Councilwoman Stanton said that she has been working somewhat behind the scenes with DOT.  Unionville 
Indian Trail Road and Sardis intersection improvement project has been ranked 4th of 30 for grant funding—
which means we stand an excellent chance of being approved for $2 million towards this project.  
Councilwoman Stanton said that while she has not been able to attend the meetings for CRPTO she is 
working on matters on the Town’s behalf.  She is thankful that Council has been agreeable with her working 
in this way.  Councilwoman Stanton is grateful matters are moving forward with the Ashe Croft drainage 
situation.  Councilwoman Stanton said that in working with DOT she has learned that during consideration of 
new residential developments they have software and standards to determine how residential developments 
will impact area roadways.  Unfortunately, the previous Council never utilized the resources when 
considering developments.  Rather, she agreed with Councilman Cohn that the previous Council was rubber-
stamping everything.  There are tools available that this Council will use in order to make educated and 
thoughtful decisions with new developments.  She opined that there are other measures that can be put on the 
books for ensuring Council makes good decisions; a moratorium isn’t the only or even best way to ensure 
developments are carefully considered.  This Council cares about the residents and our infrastructure.  
Councilwoman Stanton also plans to be in the 4th of July Parade and wishes everyone a happy and safe 4th of 
July. 

 Councilman Daniels said that he reached out to Captain Coble many times in considering a second Sheriff’s 
Substation.  When he was looking at a police department last year he was actually trying to get the Town a 
better contract with the Sheriff’s Department—he is a numbers man.  Councilman Daniels doesn’t believe the 
number of agenda items a member includes on agenda is relevant; if it is a good item then it should be 
considered.  The first night he was sworn into office he included an agenda item.  He also requested a 
resolution addressing the school redistricting.  The new Town Hall was being worked on for 15 months; when 
that concluded he began submitting agenda items again.   Councilman Daniels said that in the body of his 
memo requesting the moratorium on residential development he outlines the 4 steps necessary as well as 
provides a statement for problems and solutions.  These are items required by statute and they were addressed.  
Councilman Daniels said he did not think up this moratorium; it came from a taxpayer that sent an email to 
him and the Mayor.  He felt it was a good idea and can’t help if some look at it as political grandstanding.  He 
said if he sits back and does nothing when a resident asks for assistance then he is not a very good Council 
Member.  As for secular prayer, this country was founded on freedom of religion; he asked for secular prayer 
because he didn’t want to leave anyone out which would be the case if he had simply asked for prayer.  
United States Congress has prayer, County Commissioners, State bodies and other municipalities have prayer 
before meetings; Indian Trail is in the minority by not having prayer at the start of their meetings.  He said 
that he did not contact the athletic associations about the $3,000 because it is not for them but for the children 
of Indian Trail.  The intent was for them to have more summer programs for our children.  Councilman 
Daniels said that he is not a rubber stamp person.  He read a statement of problems and solutions from his 
memo on the moratorium:  “in 2015 several Council members campaigned about stopping the multi-family 
and single family residential development until the Town upgraded our streets, highways, and roads.  I agree 
with these current Council members and the Town over the next 10 months should develop a comprehensive 
Traffic Congestion Plan so that all of the new multi-family and single family can be thoroughly reviewed 
against the is plan.  We should also amend the UDO to make sure any future development aligns with our 
Traffic Mitigation Plan.”  If you are going to keep campaign promises that noble but how are you going to 



 

11 
Town Council Regular Meeting June 28, 2016 Minutes 

stall development until?  NY had Mayor Kotch who said a good idea is a good idea and doesn’t matter if it 
comes from a democrat or a republican.  Councilman Daniels said that the Council Members appointed to 
outside committees such as CCOG and CRPTO are not attending meetings.  If they are too busy to attend then 
they should just say that so Council can appoint someone else.  You can’t work from home all the time 
because you can’t cast votes and make a presence from working at home.  Councilman Daniels felt that 
Council has hurt our economic development by disbanding the EDAC and pulling out of the QUAD.  He felt 
that a moratorium on residential development would not hurt the economy.  He will continue to put items on 
the agenda that he feels will benefit the Town.  He asked that Council not remove items just because they 
don’t like him personally; a good idea is a good idea no matter who it comes from.  Councilman Daniels said 
he is very disappointed in this Council this evening.  Whatever he did two years ago is based upon what was 
going on two years ago—yes, he voted for an apartment complex.  He wished everyone a great 4th of July and 
hopes to see everyone at the next meeting on July 12th. 

 Mayor Alvarez said that politics are a dirty animal and there are always three sides to every story.  He urged 
residents to seek the truth, which cannot be found on social media.  Mayor Alvarez said yes, many other 
government entities have pray at the start of meetings and they all end with “in Jesus name, amen”; they are 
not secular prayers.  He said that he follows the rules made by Council.  He said it doesn’t work to diffuse a 
bomb after it has gone off.  He urged everyone to remember the meaning of the 4th of July—our Independence 
Day.  He thanked those who fight and serve and protect our nation.  He wished everyone a safe and happy 4th 
of July. 

 
15. CLOSED SESSION:  none         
 
16. ADJOURN :  Councilwoman Stanton moved to adjourn the meeting at approximately 8:47 PM and the motion 

carried unanimously. 
 

 
 
 
(SEAL)       _______________________________ 
        Michael L. Alvarez, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kelley Southward, Town Clerk          



 
PO Box 2430 • 130 Blythe Drive • Indian Trail • North Carolina • 28079 • (704) 821-5401• Fax (704) 821-9045 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 

 
TO: Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM: Alicia Massey 
 
CC: Scott Kaufhold 
 
DATE: July 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Month End June 2016 
 
 

 

According to GS 105-350(7) it is the duty of the tax collector to submit to the governing body at each of 
its regular meetings a report of the amount he/she has collected on each year’s taxes with which he is 
charged, the amount remaining uncollected, and the steps he/she is taking to encourage or enforce 
payment of uncollected taxes. 
 
Attached is the month end report for June 2016 collections.  The tax department is using all collection 
remedies as provided by general statute to collect delinquent taxes including but not limited to 
garnishments, attachments and NC Debt Setoff.   
 
 
  

 



 
July 7, 2016                                            TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL                                          Page No: 4    
09:39 AM                                    Property Tax Transaction Inquiry Totals Page                                            
 

                              --------------------------  Principal  -------------------------
Description   Count     Arrears/Other               2016               2017             Future             Penalty           Total

Billing       32409      7,287,934.68               0.00               0.00               0.00                         7,287,934.68 
 
Payments      31383      7,332,436.76-              0.00               0.00               0.00            8,461.24-    7,340,898.00-
 
Reversals        13          5,767.12               0.00               0.00               0.00               20.43         5,787.55 
 
Adjustments    1808          2,473.35-              0.00               0.00               0.00              431.32         2,042.03-
 
Apply Over        0              0.00               0.00               0.00               0.00                0.00             0.00 
 
Rev Appl Ovr      0              0.00               0.00               0.00               0.00                0.00             0.00 
 
Ref Overpay     203         64,417.13               0.00               0.00               0.00                0.00        64,417.13 
 
Penalty        3742                                                                                       8,931.44         8,931.44 
 Totals       69558         23,208.82               0.00               0.00               0.00              921.95        24,130.77 









 
PO Box 2430 • 130 Blythe Drive • Indian Trail • North Carolina • 28079 • (704) 821-5401• Fax (704) 821-9045 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 

 
TO: Mayor and Town Council  
 
FROM: Alicia Massey 
 
CC: Scott Kaufhold 
 
DATE: July 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Order of Collection 
 
 

 

According to GS 105-321(b), before delivering the tax receipts to the tax collector in any year the 
governing body shall adopt and enter in its minutes an order directing the tax collector to collect the 
taxes charged. 
 
Attached is the Order of Collection directing and empowering the Town of Indian Trail Tax Collector to 
collect taxes charged for tax year 2016 and prior years.  

 



 

State of North Carolina 
Town of Indian Trail 
To the Tax Collector of the Town of Indian Trail: 

 

You are hereby authorized, empowered and commanded to collect the taxes set forth in the tax records 
filed in the office of the Tax Collector and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the amounts 
and from the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon 
all real property of the respective taxpayers in the Town of Indian Trail, and this order shall be a full and 
sufficient authority to direct, require and enable you to levy on and sell any real or personal property of 
such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. 

 

 

Witness my hand and official seal, this 12th day of July, 2016 

 

____________________________________________ 
Mayor, Town of Indian Trail 

 

Attest: 

____________________________________________, Clerk of the Town of Indian Trail 



 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 
TO:               Mayor and Town Council      
 
FROM:         Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E., Town Manager   
 
DATE:          July 12, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:   Faith Church Road Corridor Study, Open Public Comment Period 

 

General Information: 
 

Staff requests approval to formally begin a 34 day public comment period for the Faith Church Road 
Corridor Study from Thursday, August 18, 2016 through Tuesday, September 20, 2016.  
 
 
 

 

 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA) 
          )          RESOLUTION # R160712-01 

TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL          ) 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE  
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160A-31 

 
 

 
 WHEREAS,  petition requesting annexation (Annexation #142) of an area 
described in said petition (07045001) was received on the 12th day of July 2016, by the 
Town Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. Chapter 160A, Article 4A, Parts 1 and 4 provide that the 
sufficiency of the petition shall be investigated by the Town Clerk of the Town of Indian 
Trail, North Carolina before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Indian Trail, North Carolina 
deems it advisable to proceed in response to this request for annexation; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town 
of Indian Trail, North Carolina that: 
 

The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Town 
Council the result of the investigation. 

 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Michael Alvarez, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Kelley Southward, Town Clerk 









































































 
PO Box 2430 . 130 Blythe Drive . Indian Trail . North Carolina . 28079 . (704) 821-1314 . Fax (704) 821-1381 

 

Town of Indian Trail  

Memo 
 
TO:               Mayor and Town Council      
 
FROM:         Scott J. Kaufhold, P.E., Town Manager   
 
DATE:          July 12, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:   Website Design and Development RFP 

 

General Information: 
 
Staff interviewed and issued an RFP for Website Design and Development to the following companies: 
 

• Vision Internet 
• MunicipalCMS, LLC 
• CivicPlus 
• GovOffice Web Solutions 
• BigOak Creative – Municipal Web Services 

 
Proposals were received and are currently being reviewed. Staff recommendation will be provided to 
Council on Monday, July 11. 
 
Attachment: 
 
RFP #505-2016-004 

 



  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
TOWN OF INDIAN TRAIL 

 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
Bid No. 505-2016-004 

 

Redesign and Development of the  

Town of Indian Trail Website 

www.indiantrail.org 

 

 

Date of Issue: June 22, 2016 

Submittals are due by  
4:00 pm on Tuesday, July 5, 2016 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.indiantrail.org/


Page 2 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

I.   Purpose 
 
The Town of Indian Trail (“the Town”) is issuing this Request for Proposal (RFP) in order to select 
and contract with a company (“vendor”) to redesign the Town website. 

 
The Town seeks to create a modern, dynamic website that is designed and organized in a manner that: 

• allows viewers with limited computer experience to easily find and access information, 
• acts as a marketing tool for the Town to highlight the community, its assets, and attractions to 

potential residents and businesses, 
• is easy to update and modify, and 
• is able to incorporate additional components in the future. 

 
The chosen strategic partner must be a vendor that has experience in managing website design projects 
and expertise with best practices regarding successful website redesign, development and deployment, 
social media integration, search engine optimization, and responsive design and architecture. 

 
This RFP does not obligate the Town to award a contract or complete the project and the Town reserves 
the right to cancel the solicitation if it is considered to be in its best interest. 

 
II.   Background 
 
The Town is located in Union County and is just 15 miles southeast of Charlotte. The town limits 
encompass approximately 20 square miles with an additional 15 square miles of planning areas. Indian 
Trail was incorporated in 1907 and is nearing its 110th birthday. Annual celebrations include a Fourth of 
July parade, a Christmas parade, Halloween Candy Crawl, Arbor Day and more. 
 
Early settlement can be traced to the 1750s and a path the Waxhaw Indians used, hence the name “Indian 
Trail”. The economy evolved from a trading community and gold mining to agriculture and transportation 
in the 1870s with the presence of the railroad. Since the 1950s and 1960s, however, a national suburban 
trend emerged - one that continues today and has a tremendous impact on Indian Trail. 
 
Indian Trail’s close proximity to a metropolitan area has accelerated its growth as many of our residents 
work in Charlotte. The town has also benefitted from a number of distributors located here as well as 
several new commercial developments. 

 
The current website for the Town is located at www.indiantrail.org. 

 
III.   Key Dates 
 

 RFP Release Date Wednesday, June 22, 2016 
 Proposal Deadline Tuesday, July 5, 2016 
 Final Selection   Wednesday, July 12, 2016 

 
IV. Preliminary Scope of Work 
 

 A final scope of work will be developed with the Town and the vendor submitting the selected proposal 
at the time of selection. The following acts only as a preliminary scope to generally communicate the 
Town’s expectations. 

 
The Town is seeking to completely redesign its website so that residents, businesses, and visitors, both 
current and potential, can easily navigate and access information, communicate with the Town through 

http://www.tarboro-nc.com/


Page 3 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

surveys and online comment submissions, and download any necessary Town forms.  
 
Alternate Proposal I 
 
The Town is interested in developing an Indian Trail specific mobile app for use on phones and tablets 
that would include the ability to use GPS functionality, mobile text alerts, content sharing and social 
media connectivity, a “Near Me” function and other Indian Trail specific categories. Mobile app 
updating should be tied into the main website CMS program and update automatically when the same 
content on the main website is updated. If a respondent is interested in contracting with the Town to 
develop a mobile app, the respondent should include an additional proposal along with that for the web 
design for an Indian Trail specific mobile app, including all relevant information. 
  
Alternate Proposal II 
 
This RFP is for web design services only, and does not include hosting the site. The Town is open to the 
idea of switching web-hosting service providers. If a respondent is interested in contracting with the 
Town for web-hosting service, the respondent should include an additional bid along with that for the 
web design for web-hosting service, listing price per month and all relevant information on features 
including server, software, hardware, etc. 

 
Proposals for redesign of the website should include or account for, but not be limited to the following: 

1) Design a unique, attractive website to completely fulfill all Town requirements either in this 
RFP or in discussions with the Town following selection of a Vendor. 
 

2) Design a self supporting, consistent, user-friendly navigation framework for the Town 
website that is understandable to users on all levels. 
 

3) Design a unique home page for the Town website. Design should be simple and allow users 
to easily access relevant information. 
 

4) Design a template for all pages within the site.  All pages must be consistent, look 
professional, and enhance the image of the Town. 
 

5) Vendor should maintain timely and regular communication with the Town during the 
development process. 
 

6) Assist with the development of web page content so information is organized and easy to 
access as well as the entire site has a uniform, consistent format. 
 

7) Aid the Town in transitioning to the new website including: staff training and the 
production of a guide book or instructions on changing/updating the website.  The Town 
intends to utilize a content management system to update the website. 
 

8) The primary purpose of the website is as a communication tool between the Town and 
outside stakeholders. To best meet the needs of both, it is expected that the completed 
website include each of the following components: 
 

• Ability to change items on the homepage, such as calendar or news items that 
display and banner images; 

• Integration with social networking websites, allowing us to selectively update our 
Facebook and Twitter pages with the content management system as staff updates 



Page 4 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

the website; 
• Must have the ability to post Facebook and Twitter feeds in the website; 
• Mobile device compatibility for all website content; 
• A search function that allows the user to search the whole site or subsections within 

the site; 
• A site map; 
• A live calendar with a listing of important dates and community events, which can 

be divided according to department or category; 
• The ability to create multiple separate calendars and news pages based on category 

and/or department; 
• The ability to easily post emergency notices on the website homepage; 
• The ability to create different but duplicate instances of a page in multiple areas of 

the website navigation; 
• The ability to download applications necessary to view information (ex: Adobe 

Acrobat Reader); 
• The ability to conduct online polls and surveys with responses in multiple formats 

including but not limited to: multiple choice, free flowing text and “check all that 
apply”; 

• A way for residents to automatically add or delete an email address from a mass 
email distribution list.  This email distribution list should be available in database 
form for staff to access; 

• The ability for users to complete various forms online; 
• The option to create multi-step workflow for all content types.  This should include 

the ability to define no less than three separate stages in the review/approval process 
for each type of content; 

• The ability to preview any changes made to content before publishing to the 
website. This should apply to all types of content, including but not limited to 
pages, calendar events, news, and FAQs; 

• The ability to create additional interior page templates as needed, and assign to 
departments or content groups to use; 

• The ability to archive pages and content; 
• The ability to define a review schedule for all content, prompting the site editors to 

review published, non-date sensitive content periodically to ensure all items remain 
accurate. 

 9)   Any additional features the respondent feels would improve the Town website or the 
transition process.  It is expected that the Vendor work with the Town to develop a site that 
best meets the needs of the Town. 

 
The Town expects that the Vendor and Town will work together to plan and organize information on the 
site, which most likely will include planning sessions, regular meetings, and continued communication 
throughout the duration of the website design project. 

 
The following represents a preliminary site organizational structure. Actual site organizational structure 
will be set following selection of Vendor. Planning the organizational structure is a part of the scope of 
work included in the RFP.  It is expected that the Vendor work closely with the Town to develop a site 
organizational structure. 

 
Home Page: The index page will contain a navigation bar directing users to a limited number of broad 
categories such as: 

• About the Town 
• Government 



Page 5 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

• Resident Services 
• Business Services 
• Economic Development 
• Visitors 

 
About the Town: Town history, facts, maps, links, FAQs, current events, and the newsletter; 

 
Government: Town’s elected officials, staff, and departments; staff directory, meeting dates, minutes, 
meeting agendas, budget information, comprehensive plans, the annual financial audit, municipal code, 
and links to state and federal officials. 

 
Resident Services:  waste removal, permits, and other programs; links to those services provided by 
other governmental agencies. 

 
Business Services: business license applications, permit applications and information, zoning 
information, etc. 
 
Economic Development: This section will serve as a primary marketing took to attract new businesses to 
the Town. It will feature available parcels, retail space for lease, maps, market area information and other 
pertinent information focused on the attraction and retention of businesses in the community. 

 
Visitors: This section will serve as a primary marketing took to attract new visitors to the Town. 
 
Other features to be on the home page could include but not be limited to: 

• A search function; 
• An “I want to…..” menu listing frequently visited items; 
• A frequently asked question menu listing common resident questions; and 
• A section with current or important news. 

 
V. Requirements 

 
Website Requirements 
All proposals must include the following to be considered in the selection process: 

 
1) The site must be unique, look professional, and uniformly represent the Town in interaction 

with residents, businesses, and visitors both current and potential. 
 

2) Design for each page must be consistent throughout the site. 
 

3) The entry point for the site must represent the quality and character of the Town. 
 

4) Each page must be sized as to allow printing or contain a printer friendly version. 
 

5) The site should be designed to be accessible by viewers with limited computer knowledge and    
should avoid using technology that may not be compliant with some browsers. In the event such 
technology is used, the site should provide alternate means for accessing the information. 
 

6) The Town would like the site design to be as compliant with Section 508 and Americans with 
Disabilities Act guidelines as reasonably possible. Respondent should make an effort to comply 
with guidelines; however the usability of the site and ability for staff to easily update the site 
and content contained within the website should be considered. Compliance with the standards 



Page 6 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

should not prevent any other requirements from being met. 
 

7) The site must be easy to update by Town staff using Town-owned software. 
 

8) Website content management system should allow for unlimited amount of system users at no 
extra cost to Town. 
 

9) The CMS is required to have the ability for backend users to create their own page template on 
the fly without any extra cost to the Town, and allow these templates to be used by only specific 
content groups. 
 

10) The site must allow the option for adding multiple levels of review and approval of content, 
before information is published to the site. Must have a minimum of three (3) levels of 
approval, proposals without four levels will not be considered. 
 

11) The website must utilize responsive design to display on varying monitor sizes, tablets, and all 
mobile devices (Windows, Android, iPhone, etc). Must list a minimum of 3 references of sites 
live using this technology. 

 
Technical Requirements 
Any website design must be Windows based and comply with all technical requirements including 
specifications regarding hardware, software, and the protocol for transferring and updating information 
as defined by the Town during negotiations on the final scope of work. The Town could, if necessary 
and reasonable, upgrade some or all requirements to accommodate website design. 
 
Selection of a proposal for contract will be at the sole judgment of the Town. Only those respondents 
meeting the following conditions, however, will be considered: 

• Respondent must demonstrate past success with website development. 
• Respondent must provide references for at least three (3) organizations.  References must be 

organizations for which the respondent has developed a website that is currently in use. 
 

Fee and Award of Contract 
Proposal should include a total not-to-exceed contract proposal amount. Please be very explicit in listing 
and describing any services or items not covered in the proposal fee amount.  Proposal fee should be 
broken down to include major fee categories. 

 
Upon selection, final contract amount will be subject to negotiation to determine exact scope of services 
to be provided and final contract fee amount and a contract outlining all relevant terms shall be executed 
by both parties. Selection does not guarantee award of the contract. In the event the Vendor and the Town 
fail to agree to a contract, the Town will choose from remaining respondents or put out another Request 
for Proposals. 
 
The Town reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to cancel or modify the RFP in part or in its entirety. 
The Town will not reimburse respondents for any costs incurred in preparation or submission of the 
proposal. All proposals are made at the sole cost of the Respondent.  
 
Proposals should be received at the address below by 4:00 pm on July 5, 2016.  Late proposals will not 
be accepted. Proposals should be hand delivered or mailed. Respondents are to submit all materials 
together in a sealed packet and clearly mark on the outside of the package “Town of Indian Trail 
Website Design and Development.” 
 



Page 7 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

Address: 
Town of Indian Trail 
Attention: Vicky Watts 
PO Box 2430 (mailing) 
130 Blythe Drive (shipping) 
Indian Trail, NC 28079 
704.821.1314 
 
Proposals are to be sent in triplicate (3 copies) and are to include the following: 

• A timeline indicating expected completion time of key steps and of the entire project from 
execution of contract agreement. Key steps should be briefly described; 

• Response to respondent questions; 
• Reference sheet;  
• Bid sheet with detailed fee breakdown; 
• Alternate Proposal I (optional) 
• Alternate Proposal II (optional) 

 
Please provide explanation as to why submitted proposal deviates from that described in the RFP. 

 
The Town reserves the right to request additional information from any respondent after submission of 
proposal including but not limited to: additional design templates, clarification of submitted materials, 
and/or interviews or to allow for corrections of misinformation or omitted information. 

 
The Town reserves the right to change proposal submission requirements and to change the due date at 
any point during the RFP process, upon notification of all firms and individuals who have expressed to 
the Town the intent to submit a proposal (collectively the “Expected Respondents”). 

 
It is the goal of the Town to design a website that best meets the needs of residents, businesses, visitors, 
staff, and other stakeholders.  Improvements or suggestions to any condition in the RFP are welcome and 
should be explained in the bid.  Requirements are somewhat flexible and could be altered given a better 
idea or method. 

 
By submitting the proposal the Respondent relinquishes all rights to submitted proposals or the ideas 
contained therein, and the Town reserves the right to retain all submitted proposals and to use any 
ideas in any proposal submitted, regardless of whether or not the proposal is selected.  All material 
submitted in response to the RFP shall become property of the Town and will not be returned. 

 
Prior to the execution of the agreement between the Town and the Vendor, the contents of each 
proposal will remain confidential, to the extent permitted by law, and not made available to anyone 
except those involved in the selection process. 

 
VI. Clarifications 
 
Any questions about requirements, clarification, or any other instruction contained within the RFP or 
relating to the RFP must be in writing and should be directed to Vicky Watts at   
vbw@engineering.indiantrail.org.    

 
Any clarifications made in response to questions received will be sent to all expected respondents. 
Anyone planning to submit a proposal should contact the Town contact listed above to convey such 
intent. The deadline for requesting clarification is July 3, 2016. 

 

mailto:vbw@engineering.indiantrail.org.


Page 8 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

VII. Selection Process 
Selection of proposals will be at the sole judgment of the Town. The Town will consider all parts of the 
proposal collectively, but place an emphasis on template design, prior experience, and cost in the 
selection process. Selection may not be the proposal with the lowest cost.  Respondents may not contest 
for any reason the selection of the Town. 
 
Selection does not guarantee a contract.  After selection, the Vendor and Town will discuss and agree on 
final scope of work and final contract amount and terms of the Contract. If the Vendor and Town fail to 
reach an agreement, the Town is free to select from remaining available respondents, cancel the RFP, or 
issue an additional Request for Proposals. 
 
VII. Contract and Completed Website 
 
The Contract between the Vendor and the Town will include provisions indicating compensation 
schedule and timeline for completion of and transition to the new website.  The Town will retain the 
right of approval for any and all work done in designing the website. It is the expectation and desire of 
the Town to transition to the new website as soon as possible. The contract will be for the design and 
implementation of the Town website and will include no guarantee or intent to contract for future 
services. 

 
Upon completion of the contract all content, site design, site templates, and any other item or idea used in 
the completed website or contained therein will become property of the Town. Vendor will relinquish all 
rights to the website and the Town will have sole control over website design, content, and appearance. 
 
VIII. Insurance Requirements 
 
The Town requires respondents to hold the following insurance coverage: 

• $1 million General Liability Coverage and 
• $1 million Professional Liability Coverage, also called Errors and Omissions (This is not to 

be confused with General Liability Coverage.) 
 
VIIII. Respondent Questions 

 
1) Describe your organization’s experience in developing websites. Note any experience with design 

and development for municipal corporations. Also comment on the overall history of the 
organization. 
 

2) Describe different services offered by your organization and the approximate share of business 
devoted to web design. 
 

3) Provide a brief bio listing qualifications of each employee that would contribute to developing 
the website for the Town, if selected. Please note experience with similar projects. 
 

4) List types of software or practices used for website development and design. 
 

5) Clearly define responsibilities of the Town during the web site design process. 
 

6) Describe the expected interaction between your organization and the Town throughout the 
development and transition process. 
 

7) Describe the support your organization will provide during design and transition to the new 



Page 9 of 9 
Town of Indian Trail 
RFP No. 505-2016-004 

website. Please be specific with respect to type (training, help only, etc.), contact method 
(phone, email), and available hours for support. 
 

8) Provide all necessary contact information for your organization. 
 

9) Provide any additional information about your organization that you feel is relevant to the 
decision process. 






































	01_7-12-16 TC Agenda
	04a_Float Award Memo to Council
	08a_a_budget amends
	08a_b_budget amends
	08b_6-28-16 TC Minutes
	08c_Month End Tax Report June 2016
	Town Memo - Monthly Tax Collection Report
	Town of Indian Trail

	Month End Tax Report June 2016

	08d_2015 Settlement
	08e_Order of Collection 2016.docx
	Order of Collection 2016
	Town of Indian Trail

	Order of Collection

	08f_M- Faith Church Road Corridor Study Open Public Comment Period
	08g_RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK_142
	08h-08l
	11a_DPW Equipment Purchase
	11b_Website Design  Development
	M- Website Design and Development RFP
	Town of Indian Trail

	Town of Indian Trail RFP

	11c-12d

